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Hungarian road!”! Events in the two countries were interrelated
a real sense on October 24 in the Warsaw mass meeting of severy§
hundred thousand people, which was the high point of the Poligj
events. Two dramatic actions symbolized the Polish-Hungarj
relationship. First, several university student groups, who we
informed of the Budapest demonstrations of the previous day
marched to the square with Hungarian flags, receiving the fiif
approval of the crowd.2 Second, more than two thousand peopl
joined by several thousand on the way, “marched to the Hungariasn
Embassy” at the end of the meeting “to express their solidarity wi
the Hungarian nation.” Finally, one of the demonstrating group:
“convened a short meeting with the watchword ‘Warsaw:
Budapest-Belgrade’.” .

The Polish and the Hungarian October:
Identities and Differences

Let us follow the course of events. On June 28, 1956, a workers¥
uprising took place in Poznan, in which the crowd of 100,00(8
demanded “bread and freedom.” To suppress the uprising, 10,0008
soldiers, 400 tanks, hundreds of armored military vehicles and eve
aircraft were put into action against the unarmed crowd and sev
al hundred insurgents with handguns and petrol bombs. In th
course of the battle more than 70 people were killed, of whom 8]
were members of the “forces of order.” The average age of those
killed was 26. About one thousand were wounded. 247 perso

were arrested for participation, of whom 196 were workers, 144

“working intellectuals,” 32 pupils and 5 university students. 567

persons were investigated; 94 of these were suspected of “arme _.m...

activity,” and 58 were charged, but following the events of Octobe
all of them were soon released.

Polish public opinion initially obtained information oonoﬁ.z.wH
ing these events from reports of the official PAP news agency.d
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stating that in Poznan “disturbances were caused by Western impe-
rialist agencies and domestic reaction.” In the evening of June 29
prime Minister Jozef Cyrankiewicz Bmaa, his infamous speech,
which Poles still remember: “Each provocateur or madman who
dares to raise a hand against the people’s power can be certain that
the people’s power will cut off that hand with an ax.”

The Poznan events gave rise to an interesting reaction in
Hungary. At the extraordinary session of the Central Leadership of
the Hungarian Workers’ Party on June 30 there was a joint agenda
item on the press debates of the Petéfi Circle, which had taken
place several days earlier, and the Poznan demonstrations. First
Secretary Matyas Rékosi summarized the two events: “Two unex-
pected events took place recently, the Poznan event and the press
debate.” The commentary of Rékosi at the closed session did not
differ from the tone of the “cutting hands off” speech of
Cyrankiewicz: “The Poznafi provocation demonstrates that the
enemy now uses every means to damage the resuits of the
Twentieth Congress [the Congress of the Communist Party of the
Soviet Union of February 19561, in order to sow confusion between
the Party and the working masses. According to the most recent
information received, the Poznan provocation was connected with
the presence of many foreigners at the international fair, and sever-
al days earlier the Americans had parachuted several armed diver-
sionary groups into the border district.” At this session a resolution
was passed closing the Petéfi Circle for the summer. Less than
three weeks later the Soviet leaders decided to dismiss Rakosi,
since not only was he unable to handle the Hungarian crisis, but he-
intensified it by his presence. He was “offered™ an opportunity to
depart to the Soviet Union, which he “accepted.” He was replaced
by Emé Gers, who was just as responsible for the past years’ poli-
cies as the dismissed Party leader. It was a “change without a
change.” Poznan and the Petdfi Circle were cited not only by
Rékosi, but also by Anastas Mikoyan, who came to Budapest to
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dismiss Rakosi. At the meeting of the Central Leadershi
17-18 Mikoyan spoke of the Peté

-

Poznan.”s

p on July §
fi Circle as an “ideologic

The Poznan workers’ uprising sent a bloody message to the
Polish Party leadership. The grievances had expanded to such ap
extent that the street demonstrations chanting only social slogans at
the beginning had the potential to become a national movement:
repudiating the regime as a whole. The unambiguous message of
Poznan indicating the necessity of change, coupled with the violent. §
expression of social dissatisfaction, accelerated the ongoing
process of disintegration within the Polish United Workers’ Party:
(PUWP). The potential explosion created by the Poznan “black
Thursday™ and the threat of anarchy “from the point of view of the-
Party,” strengthened and made persuasive the position of those-
scattered voices who demanded the return of Wiadystaw Gomutka
to power. Even those agreed with this step who had actively partic
ipated in his earlier removal and condemnation, 5

In contrast to Imre Nagy, no Party opposition emerged around
Gomutka. There were many reasons for this. An important one was
the character of the two men. It was difficult to relate to Gomutka
and to maintain confidential and personal relations with him, At
that time the most important factor in the formation of a Party :
opposition, aside from related principles, was the personal ele- 3
ment.® Other reasons were to be found in the similar yet essential-
ly different situation in Poland and Hungary. Gomutka was
expelled from the Party in 1951, although he had fallen from grace ]
in 1948. Party leaders or bureaucrats who sympathized with him
openly shared his fate very soon. In 1956 he and his sympathizers §
expected to be rehabilitated. After 1951 Gomutka had no “secret”

Party supporters, and he was excluded for years from the political 3
arena. His popularity among Party members and especially in
Polish society was not based upon his attempt to humanize the sys-
tem or eliminate its most flagrant abuses, but upon his refusal, for .

PAISNCT PRRER HE TV SR
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.l reasons, to accept the Stalinist Soviet model automatically
L of the Communist takeover. It should be remarked, how-
- MHM&Q to 1948, when he was still in power, he was not very
e n humanizing the emerging Communist regime.

w%:ﬂ?a: the official central daily newspaper of the PUWP,
Trybuna Ludu, published a brief notice on August S, Gm.m, con-
. the readmittance of Gomutka to Party membership, two
ot Party groups attempted to obtain his support. These Foomo
W%Em:_“. m“MEm were exclusively interested in maintaining their
wm%nwnwmu.__s Party affairs; they were in effect 58.6% m_.oﬂ.ﬁm mua
o isted for the most part of people who were quite prominent in
M_“H mmg&:mmﬁ period. Both groups, however, attempted to _%ﬁ..mmw MMM
tight Polish dependence on Moscow. ﬂrow were m._mnm v_wz E:w eres
ed in some vague form of aoﬂmﬁmmn _.Mrmm,mw_ Mwim M o
olution to their efforts.
QMMM“_M%MMM Mﬂ_w as to the degree of loosening ”aom with gomo..u%.
m..n the limits of the democratic procedures to be E.Hoa;om.n. Asl e
MME their motivation, it is their historic .EQ.# \&mr. :::WM_E@MM
Hungarian comrades, they realized that it was _.s&mwoum» mmmn
make substantial changes, and they were oo.._::snm SEE Bom.
those changes. Even though they did H._on Emm Gomutl m._ Mm&a&
ognized that there was no other alternative. m::c_ﬂm.snocm %a Sard
Ochab, the first secretary of the Central Ooﬂ:E.:nn, mzm ﬂm °
Minister Cyrankiewicz, who advocated the necessity of reform hy
this time, were of the opinion that the power of the .OoE”,EEow
Party could be preserved in Poland only by _Bﬁ_.mBmEEm ct ms_ﬁmF mm
through Gomutka. Since Gomutka was an active Emﬁﬁ _M oz-
game, he was well informed and he was the one who stipulated ¢
&:oﬁ:g comparing the events of 1956 in Hungary and NwM:MW
it is particularly striking that the oosacg.om Ochab msa‘ Emd M..m
and that of Prime Ministers Cyrankiewicz and Andras Ea.mn:w:,
were quite unlike each other, even though they faced very sim
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XE:
situations. While in Poland it was primarily due to Ochab ap, 3

largely responsible for the explosion claiming human lives and
destruction.

latter had made it known that he was willing to return only on the
condition that he would receive the top Party position. This was the
only episode in the history of East Central European Communism
in which a Communist Party leader voluntarily resigned his posi-i#
tion to allow another Party leader to take over.
Gomulka decided to support the Party alignment favoring:
more comprehensive democratic changes. He also stipulated as
condition of accepting the Party position that all members of th
Political Committee and Secretariat, discredited in the pre-195
regime, be replaced. This meant a complete personnel change ind
both Party organizations. These momentous changes were sched<§§
uled for the Eighth Plenary Session of the PUWP Central
Committee. This was public knowledge. The conservative force
the dogmatists, were ready to block these changes, with the support
of Moscow and Soviet Marshal Rokossowski, the Polish minist
of defense since 1949 and a member of the PUWP Political}
Committee.
As soon as the Soviet leaders were informed of these develop- 3
ments, they took immediate steps to prevent dismissals not previ-§
ously cleared with the Soviet Communist Party or appearing to
involve a veritable anti-Soviet coup. Therefore on the day of the
opening of the Plenary Session a Soviet Party delegation, consist-
ing of Khrushchev, Kaganovich, Molotov, Mikoyan, Minister of
Defense Zhukov and Commander-in-Chief of the Warsaw Pact
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Armed Forces Konev, unexpectedly mn.?.ma in Ewammi.
Khrushchev made threatening remarks on his arrival mﬁ. the Enx.u?
stating that he did not exclude the possibility of armed intervention
to prevent the intended changes in the woz.mr Party. dﬂomn were not
empty threats, as indicated by the activation of Soviet forces sta-
tioned in Poland and the movement of Polish forces under the com-
mand of Rokossowski towards Warsaw. As this news 8.%:&
Warsaw, workers and university students in the capital mobilized,
declaring that they would fight the Soviet troops. The Ean.zw_
Security Corps declared its loyalty to the new Party leadership.’
The commander of the Cotps, General Waclaw Komar, was :.wr.m-
bititated in the spring of 1956 after being victimized in the mE:.Eﬂ
purges, and was appointed to his new post. It is Enamo_.m obvious
why he declared his loyalty to Gomutka. .

1t should be added, furthermore, that a series of events in the
course of 1956 had shaken the foundations of the state security sys-
tem. These included the secret speech of Khrushehev in February,
which was openly distributed in Poland, the death in March of
Bolestaw Bierut, the first secretary of the PUWP Central
Committee, and the June workers’ uptising in Poznah. These
“blows” were intensified by a general political amnesty, which was
regarded by the state security system as a “questioning and destruc-
tion” of their diligent efforts.® In the course of 1956 all political
prisoners, including non-communists, aside from a few exception-
al cases, received a general amnesty. Then in October 1956 charges
were dismissed against all participants in the Poznan uprising.

In the light of the intensified conflict within the Party leader-
ship after March 1956, state security leaders did not receive
unequivocal signals regarding their continued political role. As a
result, the morale of the organization declined considerably. The
Poznah workers’ uprising demonstrated an immense social hatred
for the organization, whose representatives experienced scvere
physical reprisals, in part because their personnel’s composition
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had remained unchanged. Therefore the organization, with no oﬂwnﬂw
alternative available, remained loyal to the Party, led by Ochab;:
then Gomutka. At the time of the Eighth Plenary Session the orga--§
nization was characterized by passivity, lack of orientation and rest- 4
lessness. On hearing of state security agents being lynched in4

Budapest, its members were frightened. Consequently QoEE_S& ..
faced little difficulty and no real opposition in reorganizing and§

restructuring the organization in November 1956. Since the 3
Hungarian State Security Authority, the AVH, in contrast to its

Polish equivalent, remained unchanged, it appeared out of the ques- §
tion that it would have supported Imre Nagy against the Soviets at -3

the outbreak of revolution—either actively, as did General Komar,
or passively, as did the Polish security apparatus.

Concerning the events related to the Eighth Plenary Session of :
the Central Committee, it can be stated definitely that Soviet forces
would not have faced substantial resistance in Poland. It is also :
questionable whether the population of the capital and Polish soci-

ety would have been capable of an armed confrontation with

immense losses of life and destruction, given the memory of close -
to six million people killed in World War 11, and only twelve years
after the Warsaw uprising, which had resulted in the complete -

destruction of the city and the death of several hundred thousand }
people. Nevertheless, in the event of an armed intervention

Khrushchev would have been in a highly unpleasant situation. He
would have been a hostage in the capital of the country against
which an intervention was underway. In the case of the Hungarian
Revolution he did not commit such an error, and nor did his suc-
cessors in the coming decades.

The Eighth Plenary Session convened as planned at 10:00 a.m.
on October 19, and the Central Committee elected Gomutka to its
membership. Then the session was adjourned. The original mem-
bership of the Political Committee, accompanied by Gomutka, then
proceeded to the negotiations with Khrushchev. The negotiations
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continued with intermissions until dawn on the following day. At
that time the Soviet delegation decided to halt their troops march-
ing towards Warsaw. This decision of the Soviet delegation to
revise its original intention and to express its readiness for a com-
promise Was due in part to the unified conduct of the Polish Party
leadership, the commitment of Party supporters to democratic
changes, and the overwhelming public support for Gomutlka by the
Polish people. In the morning of October 20 the Soviet delegation
returned to Moscow and the Eighth Plenary Session continued. At
this time Gomutka delivered an address that received worldwide
attention and was published in full in the October 23 issue of
Szabad Nép, the Hungarian Party daily newspaper. It had a signifi-
cant impact on events in Budapest.? On the following day Gomutka
was elected as first secretary of the Central Committee.

Numerous factors contributed to the acceptance by the Soviet
Party leader of personnel changes in the Polish Communist Party.
While Ochab consistently supported Gomutka, the latter assured
Khrushchev that he was a true friend of the Soviet Union and did
not wish to leave the Warsaw Pact, and nor did he want the with-
drawal of Soviet troops from Poland. He expressed his conviction
that the Polish Party had a greater need of the Soviet Union than the
reverse.10 It is not known to what extent Khrushchev believed
Gomulka. It is known that the Soviet leader did not faver the return
to positions of power of rehabilitated Party members. It is certain,
however, that when he finally accepted Gomulka, he did not realize
how fortunate that selection was, and contrary to his initial inten-
tions, he proved to be an excellent “crisis manager.” As became
evident several days later in connection with Hungary, the Soviets
were not at all prepared to handle such crises in the satellite coun-
tries. In a very short time they had to face two such crises. The
events of the Hungarian Revolution demonstrated for Khrushchev
that the political management of the Polish crisis had spared the
Soviet Union many unpleasant consequences.
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Following the return of the delegation from Warsaw, the

Presidium of the Soviet Communist Party met on October 20 to dis:
cuss the Polish crisis, and it became evident that the members hag
not definitely given up the idea of military intervention, in spite o
their reluctant acceptance of the Polish proposals in Warsaw, 1 A
decision was made not to return Soviet troops in Poland to the;
bases for the time being and to make preparations for the creatiog
of a “Polish counter-government.” The Soviet leaders believed tha
they could control the course of events in Poland if “Rokossowskig
would stay”—then, they thought, “we do not need to hurry.” On’
October 21 the highly unpopular Rokossowski, the symbol o
dependence on Moscow, and unacceptable to Gomutka and hig
associates, was not elected to the new Polish Party leadership,
Nevertheless, at the meeting of the Soviet Presidium on the same:
day Khrushchev summarized the debate on the Polish situation as
follows: “Considering the circumstances, we must reject armed:
intervention.”!2 Possibly the most important such “circumstanc
was the position of the Communist Party of China. On October 19
the latter was informed routinely of plans for military interventio
in Poland, but the Chinese Party leadership forcefully objected to
the Soviet plan. The Chinese Communists added an exposition of
their position. They stated that China had to be treated as an equal
partner by Moscow and the Chinese view had to be seriously cons
sidered. The Chinese opposed intervention in Poland not because’d
they sympathized with democratic procedures, but as a result of
political considerations pure and simple. They argued from the
same point of view when the Hungarian issue was raised, but did
not object to the second Soviet intervention. Their position was that
the events in Poland did not involve a disruption of the “people’s
democracy,” and therefore the crisis was manageable by domestic.
forces. In contrast, the prevailing system was rejected at an early
stage in Hungary, and therefore intervention was unavoidable.
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During negotiations in Moscow on October .Nw the Chinese
delegation led by Liu Shao-chi and ﬁ.w:m mm_mw-?dm proposed ﬁ.o
Khrushchev that he should cancel the intervention in Poland. ,H.r_m
decision was finalized by the outbreak of .Eo Hungarian
Revolution. At this point the Polish and mE._.mm.ﬁmu events were
pecessarily managed jointly by Moscow. Originally _.mvna.ma:S-
tives of fraternal parties were invited to Zwmnoﬂ fora B.mnsnm on
October 24 for the purpose of receiving information from
Khrushchev on negotiations in Warsaw, but the mmga.w of W&E
meeting included both the Polish crisis and the Hungarian crisis,
with the Hungarian issue playing the leading role. O:. October 23
Khrushchev had agreed only reluctantly to send mn.u<._w.“ r.oo.ﬁw to
Budapest, because he had not yet excluded the vowm&_rq of inter-
vention in Poland.!3 The “Polish disturbance,” which was .Homo_éa
peacefully in spite of a potential explosion, was ?.:céon_ instantly
by the events of the Hungarian Revolution. E the light &.En revo-
Jutionary elements of the Polish October, it is not surprising Em.» a
special relationship evolved between Poland and the Hungarian
Revolution of 1956 as well as between Gomutka and Imre Nagy.

The New Polish Leadership and the Hungarian Revolution

The new Polish leadership and Gomuika personally wo__wﬁma
events in Hungary with undivided attention, utilizing all available
sources for obtaining accurate and authentic information.!4 Along
with the stream of information arriving from Budapest, Polish @c..c-
lic opinion was equally a source of pressure on the new ._nmamnw_..:m.
since Poles regarded the Hungarian Revolution as fully identical in
its objectives with the “Polish Revolution™; to demonstrate that
conviction people in Poland in large numbers donated _u_ﬁ.uoa to sup-
port their “Hungarian brothers.” At the same time Polish leaders
committed to reforms were seeking allies and supporters among
Soviet bloc countries, in most of which the “Stalinist line” was
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dominant. They found this ally in Hungary. The Hungar;
Revolution had another impact: the powerful political and partialjy
military pressure of Moscow, previously focused exclusively o
Poland, was now also directed at Hungary. This was an advanta
to Poland, since Polish leaders could implement changes more eag;
ily, such as the dismissal of Rokossowski and the repatriation off
Soviet officers and military advisers.15
The PUWP Political Committee resolved at its meeting
October 28 to issue an appeal to the Hungarian nation.!6 This w,
regarded as necessary, since the Polish leadership had observed
silence in the days following October 23, due in part to the lack of
accurate information on events in Budapest. But it could not remain4
silent any longer, since the press in Poland, Party organs such as the
Trybuna Ludu and provincial equivalents, taking advantage of
loose censorship procedures, generally welcomed the Hungarian
uprising and expressed their support for it. Such an appeal was cal-
culated to seek Hungarian support for the Polish leadership, whiled
it was also hoped that it would benefit the Hungarian Revolution:
and indirectly the stabilization of the Polish new course. In effec
the new Polish leadership perceived common elements between the:
Polish and Hungarian movements and intended to strengthen the
Hungarian—Polish relationship. :
On October 28 the Polish ambassador in Budapest, Adam
Willman, received instructions to have the appeal translated imme-
diately, since it was to be published in the Hungarian press on the
following day.!7 This was done. Willman then handed the Polish 3
original and the Hungarian translation to Jinos Kadar and Imre
Nagy, who expressed their “deep gratitude™ to the leaders of the
Polish fraternal Party for the support provided to Hungary. They
needed the support of Poland.!® On October 29 all Polish dailies
and the Hungarian Party daily Szabad Nép published the appeal of :
the PUWP Central Committee to the Hungarian nation, signed by :
Gomulka and Prime Minister Cyrankiewicz, both members of the

-
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-:.a] Committee. The appeal first expressed their sorrow over
pali human lives and the destruction in Budapest, mn,m then
the wwmmoﬂ.o W:mmmnm:m to “terminate the fratricidal fight.” Then

e
MMM wﬁmmmmmm coatinued: e
well informed of the program of the Hungari
wea ent, of the program of socialist democracy, of the
! mo<mM”=om e_<o=-wmw:m, of the formation of workers’ coun-
S.Gm:mm%n withdrawal of Soviet troops from Ec:mm—.x m:.a of
o__mu. oﬂtmcbmmamn friendship based on the Leninist ﬁa.unﬁ_om
MMMMEEQ. 1t is not our intention to intervene F your “Mm“”__
ffairs. We are of the opinion, however, that .E_m c_.omm. e
M.E accord with the interests of the Hunganan peop M a o
the peace camp as a whole... We #.Enw that those who MM o
the program of the Hungarian :%“_omm_ .Mmﬂwsaﬁﬁcéma o
way from the road to socl !
HMMQEMM mwwmwaw side—on the side of freedom Mnmﬂ ma””w.“
ism... Let peace be restored in Hungary, peace wuw EM iy
of the people, which is vitally necessary to rea _M e o
prehensive program of democracy, vﬂoma.mm m% el ;
which your national government has made its objective.

The sentence approving of the withdrawal of .moiQ.Qoo_vm
from Hungary by the Polish Party leadership oo.uSEm.m w_amﬂ._cwn
n“ﬂm&ozg in the light of their position that ::maimm —Mvw%_& %

to emphatic demands to
in the case of Poland. In response s
i rted that the geopolitica
ffect in late October, Gomutka asse )
Mou of Hungary differed significantly from that ow H.QE.:W mmaﬁ.__npww
ds were inadvertently assisnn -
those who made such deman et
i ich would be prepared to exp
nal and external reaction, whic . R
ituati tly, following several p
situation of Poland.?® Subsequently, ek o
i i i Gomutka was to ufilize
eriences concerning this matter, . . ;
H___u_m “the state interests of Poland” as the basic explanation for his

future policies.
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On October 28 Gomuika sent a two-person delegation to .
Budapest for the purpose of gathering information and evaluating:
the Hungarian situation. They were also instructed to do their best,
in the interests of the Polish Party leadership, to prevent a move-
ment of the Hungarian Revolution to the right and to persuade:
Nagy and Kadar to terminate further changes. This was a good
opportunity for the Polish leadership to assure the Hungarian lead-
ers of their support and to condemn unequivocally the request of
Gerd for Soviet military assistance “fo restore public order.” The -
delegation consisted of Marian Naszkowski, deputy foreign minis-
ter, and Artur Starewicz, substitute member of the Central
Committee, later the director of the Press Office of the Central
Committee. They met and spoke with the Hungarian leadership, -
primarily with Nagy and Kadar, on the day of their arrival. The .
Polish delegates sent a coded report fo Gomutka and Foreign ;
Minister Adam Rapacki (a member of the Political Committee).
Their report included a narrative of the events of the previous days}
and an analysis of possibilities for resolving the Hungarian crisis,
as reported by their Hungarian partners. According to the Polish

delegation, “no one in the Hungarian Party leadership could identi- 4 2

fy a single reactionary center, nor any facts concerning anti-com- -
munist or anti-socialist characteristics of the movement in the cap-

ital.” At the same time, the Hungarian leaders agreed that “each ‘48

day, each hour of prolonging the confrontation results unavoidably
in the emergence of reactionary and anti-communist elements as
leaders of the insurgent movement.”2! g 3

The two Polish delegates learned at first hand during their
Budapest visit that the peaceful resolution of the Polish crisis dur- :
ing the Eighth Plenary Session had saved Poland and the Polish
Party from catastrophic events comparable to those in Budapest.-
They were fully aware of the potential consequences of a Soviet
occupation of Warsaw, including a spontaneous uprising, which the &
PUWP would not have been able to control, as was the case in

T m i o
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Hungary.2> An armed conflict in Poland would necessarily have
involved a much larger conflict and would have revived the wounds
and MeEmories of war-torn Poland. Gomutka and his associates
therefore frequently expressed their satisfaction with the political
realism of the Polish people.

On October 29 Starewicz and Naszkowski, while stopping at
the Soviet Embassy, met the Soviet leaders Mikoyan and Suslov,
who did not respond specifically to their questions concerning
goviet intentions, except to state that the question was whether the
Nagy government would be able to control events.2? On October 30
the two delegates returned to Warsaw and reported their experi-
ences at the meeting of the Political Committee that same day.2¢ It
is significant that they informed Polish public opinion of the results
of their mission. Shortly after his return Starewicz responded to the
question of a Polish radio reporter on what he had seen in Hungary.
He stated that in his opinion the program of the Nagy government
could be implemented following the withdrawal of Soviet forces
from Budapest.?

In the morning hours of November 1, 1956, Khrushchev,
Malenkov and Molotov met a three-member Polish delegation led
by Gomutka in Brest, at the Soviet—Polish border. The Soviet dele-
gation informed them of the imminent intervention in Hungary,
which was definitively decided upon on October 31 in Moscow.26
Although the Polish delegation expressed a “separate opinien,”
since they could not accept the principle of resolving an internal
crisis by armed foreign intervention, they agreed that the danger of
counter-revolution existed in Hungary.?” They did bring up the not
very persuasive argument that the Soviet forces would face an
extended guerrilla war in Hungary.28 They took note of the Soviet
decision, since they had no other alternative, but they also consid-
ered it to be important to express their “separate opinion” in public.
The Brest Soviet statement provided Gomutka with an important
political advantage in the sense that he could then argue that it was
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in “Polish state interests™ to accept the presence of Soviet troops i
Poland, which guaranteed membership in the Warsaw Pact and thg
permanence of the revised boundaries of 1945. He argued that diss
regarding this principle would involve the tragic fate of Hungs
for Poland, and therefore it was important that people should trus
and support the PUWP. 3
The November 1 meeting of the PUWP Central Committed]
issued a public appeal to the Polish nation in which this concep
was formulated and the “separate opinion™ of the Polish Party de
egation to Khrushchev was also included. The PUWP Central
Committee was convened several hours after the Brest meeting fo
the express purpose of discussing developments related to Hungary
The Committee reviewed the Hungarian political situation and the4
issue of Soviet intervention: “the Political Committee expressed a§
position condemning the armed intervention of the Soviet Union in
Hungary.” A resolution attached to the agenda stated that an appeal
to the nation expressing the position of the Party must be issued
according to which “in Hungary the people, not an external inter<}
vention, must defend and maintain socialist achievements.”2%
The drafting of the appeal was assigned to an editorial com:
mittee directed by Jerzy Morawski, a member of the Politicaly
Committee, and after approval by Gomutka it was published in ¢
Polish press on the following day. Incidentally an additional objec-3
tive of the appeal was to “pour cold water on excessively hot Polish:
heads.”?® The section on Hungary condemned the Hungarian'
Stalinist Party leadership, which pursued policies contrary to the?
will of the working class and the majority of the nation, and instead:
of introducing democratic changes called in Soviet troops for assis
tance. The appeal emphasized the growing reactionary and counter-
revolutionary threat, and pointed out the chaotic situation in:
Hungary, including summary trials by “reactionary gangs” and the
barbaric murder of Comynunists. It condemned reactionary forces ¢
sweeping Hungary towards catastrophe and expressed the hope

it e s ot b
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that the Hungarian working class and all working people would

.vo and thereby defeat the “reactionary attack.” The appeal then
E:ﬁa the resolution of the Central Committee on the disapproval
wﬂ“@m: intervention, followed by the statement that Soviet forces

 were stationed in Poland on the basis of the Potsdam agreement, in

order to ensure communications with E.a:. monn.om in East Germany.
Therefore their withdrawal was impossible until a peace treaty was
signed with Germany or all four Great woéoam m_8==m=ao=m5m
withdrew their troops from German territory. ,E.E presence o

Soviet troops in Poland protected the Western m:::_wﬂ. of the oonﬂ-
try against German revisionist agitation. The o.ona:_o:m and cir-
cumstances of their presence would be set forth in legal documents
to be concluded with the Soviet mcéd:ﬁn:m ”;n document then
stated that in the light of international conditions the demand to
withdraw Soviet troops was contrary to the Bo% fundamental
Polish state interests. The present, it said, was nwﬁ wm:Bo for demon-
strations and assemblies, but for calmness, discipline and a sense of
responsibility: “this is the most important command of the

. moment.”3!

In spite of the impending Soviet 5820%.0? the w.o:m_u
Foreign Ministry instructed Ambassador Willman, in a note signed
by Naszkowski, to reply to the request of 5..8 Nagy for m.%uon.
The reply was to state that the Polish leadership hoped that its offi-
cial position on Hungary, expressed in the appeal Eq the PUWP
Central Committee of November 1, would be of mmm_mﬁ.msom to m._n
Hungarian government. That statement expressed the view that “in
Hungary only the internal forces of the nation, and :o.ﬂ m.: Qmon:&
intervention, can preserve the people’s power and moﬂm:ma. 32

In the evening of November 2 a coded telegram maﬁu.m from
Ambassador Willman to Foreign Minister Rapacki, stating the
request of the Hungarian government that the Polish mo<m§5.oﬁ
give its consent to the proposal that “Warsaw should be the _onmsws
of negotiations between delegations of Hungary and the Soviet
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Union for the purpose of reaching agreement on relations betwee
the two governments and especiaily the question of the stationin
of Soviet troops in Hungary.”*? It was obvious that the princip
issue of discussion was the Hungarian demand for the withdra
of the Soviet army, a demand that the leadership of the PUWP
completely rejected with regard to Poland less than a day earlier i
an unequivocal manner. Nevertheless, within an hour and a half th
Polish response was dispatched to Budapest. If both parties agreedH
the Polish government was ready to grant the Hungarian request§
that negotiations be conducted in Warsaw. The Polish governmeng
intended to inform Polish public opinion of the proposed negotiaif
tions as soon as the date of negotiations was known.3* Thus thes
PUWP Political Committee granted the Hungarian request andi
thereby it again expressed its “separate opinion of Brest.”

During the night of November 3—4 the telegram of Wil
reporting his conversation with Imre Nagy in the early afternoon off
November 3 arrived in Warsaw. In spite of the hopeless situation
the Hungarian prime minister attempted to utilize every possibili
for stabilizing the political situation. Since he assumed th
Cardinal Jézsef Mindszenty “might act in a reactionary manner,” hoj
requested the Polish government to intercede with Polish Cardin
Stefan Wyszyfiski in the interests of “influencing Mindszenty
calm the atmosphere of tension in Hungary.”3S The events
November 4, the next act of the “Hungarian tragedy,” made thigi
issue irrelevant.

Gomutka considered the secession of Hungary from the dire
Soviet sphere of interest to be inadmissible. This was in his own
interests. But initially he had difficulty approving of the second
Soviet intervention, in part because Poland had faced an identical:
danger two weeks earlier. In addition, in its October 28 appeal the#
PUWP Political Committee unequivocally disapproved of th
Soviet armed intervention that had started between four and fives
days earlier in Budapest. Therefore on November 4 Gomutka
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declared that it was necessary to accept facts. The wdém.. Political
Committee, convened in the evening of November 4 to &moc.mm the
Hungarian issue, decided to vote against the US _..mon:ou in ﬁ.rm
United Nations condemning the Soviet intervention. The Polish
delegate voted accordingly.’¢ .

The climax of the Polish crisis was the series of events at the
time of the Eighth Plenary Session of the PUWP OmEE.._
Committee. After that the new Party leadership mﬁoﬁ?& to m:&w
lize political conditions, calm the tension and secure its own posi-
tion. Gomutka, having experienced turmoil, was fully convinced of
the realism of his statements to Khrushchev on October 19-20. It
was quite clear to him that in spite of the genuine mass support that
he received at that time, unprecedented in the Soviet Eoow the
Polish Communist Party would be unable to preserve its aoEE.mE
position without Soviet military presence. He Emnnn.a to =nmc§.$
legal guarantees of the Soviet military presence with En.u mcﬁ.ﬂ
Union in the form of a bilateral treaty, which was in fact signed in
Moscow in mid-November 1956. He believed that only the Soviet
Union guaranteed the western Polish borders approved in Potsdam
in 1945. Aside from official propaganda, he considered German
territorial revisionism to be a real threat to Poland. Gomutka uti-
lized this threat as well as the suppression of the Hungarian
Revolution in the stabilization of his system in 1956. His policy
was to preserve and if possible to expand a degree of “indepen-
dence” provided by his eastern neighbor, to terminate the vestiges
of Stalinism and to develop socialism according to national charac-
teristics (“‘the Polish road to socialism”). :

By December 1956 the Polish leaders had worked out an
evaluation of the Hungarian Revolution, which they consistently
maintained in the next year and a half. This evaluation had two ele-
ments. First, they considered the Soviet intervention of November
4 t0 have been necessary, but “deeply regretted it.” Furthermore,
they thought that the intervention was an unavoidable evil, which




114 Janos Tischler

was necessary to prevent the “reaction” from assuming pOWer in
Hungary, since this represented a powerful danger for all other
socialist countrics. Their “deep regret” also meant that they
expressed their opinion rarely, because “they did not wish to speak
of unpleasant matters.”37 The second element was a position direct- 1
ly opposed to that of other countries of the Soviet bloc. The Soviet
bloc explained events in Hungary as the work of external and inter- §
nal reaction. In the Polish view, however, the Hungarian explosion
.was precipitated by the criminal and distorted policies of Matyas.
Rikosi, and the tension had built up over a period of several years
If others placed responsibility exclusively on the activity of exter-
na! forces, they removed responsibility for internal errors from the
misguided policies of the Party.38
Although Gomuika strongly disapproved of the political steps ]
of Imre Nagy in the first few days of November, he resolutely- E
objected to the kidnapping-of the Hungarian prime minister and his
associates on November 22. He expressed these views in public. Inj
May 1957 he took a step that no other Communist Party leadery
attempted: he interceded in defense of Imre Nagy at a meeting with
Khrushchev. His motive was not political agreement with Nagy, Aa:rm
his fear of restoring the practice of physical liquidation of oppo-3
nents, used in the Stalinist period. He personally nearly became 2§
victim of that practice. At the time that the Ninth Plenary wommwocw
of the PUWP Central Committee announced the fight against ideo- 4
logical revisionism, a secret coded telegram arrived from Budapest, 4
signed by Willman, with the message that Nagy was brought back
to Budapest and preparations for his trial were underway.*? One
week after receipt of the telegram 2 Polish delegation led by :
Gomutka and Cyrankiewicz traveled to Moscow to reach agree-
ment on controversial issues related to the Soviet—Polish treaty of 4
November 1956. In the course of the discussions the first secretary
of the Polish Party brought up the topic of Imre Nagy. Although
Gomutka considered Nagy to be a revisionist, he argued against the
trial, pointed out the political damage that it would do, and the
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anticipated international indignation, and stated that “Imre Nagy
was certainly not an imperialist agent.”#® In response to the nega-
tive reaction of Khrushchev, Gomutka attempted to defend the
Hungarian prime tminister, stating that even if he had been a traitor,
ne would have been unable to direct all activities and make deci-
sions. Cyrankiewicz commented that in the event of the victory of
the counter-revolution Imre Nagy would have been hanged.#! This
intercession did not produce results. But Kadar was informed of it
by Mikoyan, who had participated in the Soviet-Polish negotia-
tions. Therefore he was quite aware of the position of the Polish
teadership.4? After Gomulka turned down Kadar’s invitation to
visit Hungary, Gomutka’s intercession on behalf of [mre Nagy in
Moscow must have increased Kadar’s ::mﬂoam_u_a‘mﬁn:% towards
the Polish Party leader. This incident could also be interpreted as an
indication of the Polish view of Kadar’s “independence” from
Moscow.

The official relationship of Poland with the Kédar government
was somewhat different from the real Polish view. Polish foreign
policy beginning in November 1956 pursued the objective of
strengthening the position of the Kadar government by means of
economic assistance and international support, while disregarding
the issue of evaluating the Hungarian Revolution. Accordingly, at
the request of the Hungarian government and in spite of difficult
economic conditions, a decision was made on November 24, 1956,
to provide economic aid in goods vatued at 100 million zloty, with-
out any obligation for repayment.#> At the same time the PUWP
was highly reserved in its relations with Hungary, thereby clearly
indicating to the Kadar government that it disapproved of the mer-
ciless reprisals and terror of the restored Hungarian Communist
Party. As a result, Kadar had to wait a year and a half, until May
1958, for the official visit of Gomuilka, providing some form of
legitimacy to the Kadar government. The visit was preceded by
lengthy negotiations, including guarantees with regard to verdicts
in the Imre Nagy trial.
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“Let Us Help the Hungarians!”

The Hungarian Revolution of 1956 evoked an extraordina

response in Polish society. Poles were ready to help Hungary by

donating blood and organizing a nationwide collection of money

food and medicine. The October 28 appeal of the PUWP to th :

Hungarian nation in effect facilitated this activity and was intendedis*

to calm Polish emotions and sympathy by authorizing actions of SR

helpfulness and assistance.

The Polish Red Cross encountered an unexpectedly large num.

ber of blood donors. Blood donor stations were surprised as more

and more people volunteered to give blood. The first volunteers

appeared in smaller numbers on Friday October 26, they increased

on the following day, and on October 28, when the Polish radio

broadcast the call of the Hungarian Red Cross for assistance, peo-
ple in all parts of the country volunteered in great numbers,
Appeals for blood donations appeared continuously on the rad
and in the press untii November 4. The response was quickest
Warsaw, Cracow, Katowice (renamed from the City of Stalin)
Wroctaw, Poznan, Jelenia Géra, Lodz and Szczecin. One bloodi
donation took 2.5-3 hours. In the light of the limited capacity o
donor stations, blood could be drawn from fewer people than volsg
unteered, even after additional stations were set up in large plant
and army posts, and all donor stations functioned day and night
But even so it was necessary to schedule individual donors and
assign priority numbers. University students were in the forefront;3
but every social class was represented, without regard to Party:
membership. The PUWP Party Committee of the Voivodeship (one
of the basic administrative units in Poland, like counties in.
Hungary) started its meeting in Jelenia Gora on October 28 with
blood donations. 5
A total of 10,000-12,000 Poles donated blood. About one half ;

of the blood, 795 liters, was sent to Budapest. The Polish press and
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radio reported the procedures in detail, with mmwﬁ:.n. stories of Eo.om
donors, voluntary donations and the organizations E<o_<wa.. mo:m.:
www.mm&mum and nurses volunteered to go to Hungary and assist their
colleagues. The blood donor program lasted a ion_.n and m,rm_n and
closed when the Hungarian Red Cross expressed its mSﬁc% and
announced that it had no need for additional Eoﬁ donations, but
would welcome food, medicine and clothing aoamso-.aw.

Along with bleod donation, a nationwide collection of money,
food and medicine was organized, lasting several iwan and con-
tinuing with renewed impetus after November 4. mo__.mr mﬁ.uo:smm
did not hinder this spontaneous social initiative. Polish shipments
of blood and assistance were the first to arrive in m:b.me and Eonu“
the largest outside assistance during the Wo<o_,:zo=.. S.d.%mﬁ
brigades, trade unions, youth and scout groups, and Eazawm_m
contributed significant cash payments for medicine and moom._ mo.a.
Hupgarians fighting for their freedom and éQ.E%a E:b.mmnmsm.
Newspapers published lists of contributions daily. Industrial Em.Ew
offered wood supplies, construction materials and other materials
needed in Hungary. Trade unions and plant workers approved res-
olutions expressing solidarity with the Hungarian insurgents.

In response to the appeal, “Let Us Help the Hungarians!” pub-
lished in the Polish press, a total of 20 million zloty was collected
and transmitted to the Polish Red Cross in three weeks. The daily
collection was one million zloty. The funds were used to purchase
medicine, bandages and food, and transmitted to the Hungarian Red
Cross. The average monthly salary at that time was 800-1,000
zloty. After November 4 the central and local press no longer cov-
ered this activity in detail, but reported the total collected and the
shipment of goods.

The first Polish airplane landed in Budapest on October 26
with supplies available at the time, particularly army-owned mooa.m.
Subsequently, until November 3, 15 Polish airplanes landed in
Budapest, with shipments of 795 liters of blood, 415 liters of blood
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plasma, 16,500 kilograms of blood substitutes, serum, medicine ¥
and bandages, and 3,000 E_om&:ﬁ.% food supplies.# Until the
end of January 31 miltion zloty were collected in cash, and dona- 4 ]
tions in kind were valued at 11 million zloty. As a result, the Polis ..
Red Cross was able to ship to Hungary 25.5 tons of blood substi
tutes, medicine, bandages and medical equipment, 331 tons of food,
32 tons of clothing, 10 tons of soap, and building materials, such a .
glass, using 42 trucks and 104 railway wagons.4?
In the fall of 1956 Hungarian flags were displayed in Warsaw
and other cities of the country. Warsaw university students served’
as honor guard in front of the Hungarian Cultural Institute,:
Containers were placed on busy urban streets for the collection of
gifts. In several cities, such as Wroctaw and Warsaw, contributors?
received Hungarian tricolor ribbons. In Szczecin stamps with the
illustration of two clasped hands and the inscription “Szezecin-
Csepel” were distributed. (Csepel was the twin city of Szczecin.)%
Poles regarded the Hungarian Revolution as a genuine anti-
Stalinist revolution, which pursued objectives similar to the Polish 4
October, but resulted in a massacre as a result of the narrow-mind-4§
ed attitude and rigid power drive of the traditional leadership. The 4
large-scale assistance program to help Hungarians served to reaf-3
firm traditional Hungarian—Polish friendship in place of the mean
ingless phrases on the friendship of two people building socialism.
The memory of the admittance of close to 100,000 Polish refugee ‘
to Hungary in 1939 was still alive, and many remembeted tha
Hungarian troops stationed in Poland during World War I wer
friendly and helpful to the population. Most blood donors gave
blood for the first time and possibly the last time in their lives. They
felt that they had to help. There was a general sympathy towards
Hungarians, even if many Poles had never seen a Hungarian in the 3
flesh. Another factor was a strong anti-Soviet feeling and the feel- @
ing that Poland had avoided the tragedy of Hungary. .

Poland and Hungary in 1956 119

Al} over Poland meetings and in some cases demonstrations
were held to express solidarity with the Hungarian Revolution. The
Jargest demonstration in support of “the fighting Hungarian broth-
ers” took place in Olsztyn on October 30, 1956, with close to
10,000 participants. Demonstrators carried signs reading “We
demand the withdrawal of Soviet troops from Hungary!” “Free
poland—Free Hungary” and “Soviet internationalism shows its
true colors in Hungary.” The local Red Army Square was renamed
Square of the Hungarian Insurgents.47 A compromise was agreed to
with the local authorities and the square was named General Joseph
Bem Square. It is still so named. Wroclaw and Cracow were the
centers of other meetings and demonstrations. In the City Hall of
Wroctaw on the main square a Hungarian flag with a black ribbon
was displayed.*® The same flag was displayed in the largest indus-
trial plant, where “workers removed the red star and replaced it
with the Polish and Hungarian flags.”* In December 1956 in the
same industrial plant a five-minute work stoppage, accompanied
by the sound of the plant sirens, was held in protest against the sup-
pression of the workers’ councils in Hungary. Placards were dis-
played reading “Hands off Hungary!s® In the morning hours of
November 5 silent demonstrations took place in Cracow and
Poznah, with displayed Hungarian flags and several thousand par-
ticipants in protest against the second Soviet intervention and in
memory of the Hungarian insurgents who died in battle.

Gomutka was able to restrict the widespread social sympathy
for “the fighting Hungarian brothers” relatively early, by empha-
sizing the danger of a tragic situation in Poland, similar to that in
Hungary. Hundreds of “informative agitators” were mobilized all
over the country for that purpose.! Simultaneously, after
November 1956 he attempted to avoid domestic policies that would
revive popular excitement. The Polish leadership was fully aware
that it could not make Polish public opinion believe that a counter-
revolution had taken place in Hungary; the leadership itself did not
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believe it. A substantial proportion of Polish society in fact identi- 2%
fied with the ideas of the Hungarian Revolution, and regarded ¥
events in Hungary as a repetition of those that had taken place in 3
Poland several days earlier. Therefore Polish authorities did no
insist on the mandatory use of the “Hungarian counter-revolution™ 3
theory even in official Party publications. The official view was3
that the issue should be mentioned as little as possible. This posi= .
tion explains the fact that in spite of the repeated initiative of the 38
Warsaw Hungarian Embassy an exhibition on the “counter-revolu- -3
tion” never took place in Warsaw; nor were the Kadarist “White
Books” published in Polish.

In the winter of 1957 Hungarian Ambassador Janos Katona’d
met with Artur Starewicz, now the director of the Press Office of 3
the Central Committee, and complained that a substantial part of-3
Polish society was misinformed. He therefore suggested the publi-
cation of articles in the Polish press on “controversial issues.’ 3
Starewicz teplied that an open discussion of issues relating to
Hungary would not benefit the Hungarian government. First, Pole
still displayed a lively interest in the Hungarian events of the pre
vious year. If the Hungarian viewpoint were to be expressed in the
Polish press, this would weaken the credibility of the Polish lead-.
ership. Second, there still existed a radical difference of opinion*
between the two parties on this issue and, as a result, the Party lead=?
ership could not represent the viewpoint of the Hungarian govern- 8
ment. He understood that this was a matter of great importance for
Budapest, but it was not for Warsaw. It would, he said, require a:
long time for Polish society to change its views on the Hungarian
issue.32 .

The changes of 1956 also had an impact on the press.
Censorship became more liberal as compared with the post-1948
period. Forbidden issues still existed, but many censors became. “
uncertain as to what materials to restrict or censor. This relative
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jeadership decided to censor the excessively free “unmuzzled”
press. Prior to November 4, 1956, the Polish press faced practical-
ly no administrative rules concerning the publication of reports on
events in Hungary, and therefore papers gave extensive and factual
coverage to the Hungarian Revolution, based to a large extent on
the activity of Polish correspondents in Budapest. Dozens of state-
ments, appeals and viewpoints in agreement with the objectives of
the Revolution were published.

Although the Polish leadership attempted to fessen the full
freedom of the press and radio during the Revolution, this had lit-
tie effect. After November 4 Gomutka initially used conciliatory
language with journalists and attempted to persuade them person-
ally to consider state interests. He argued that in the light of the eco-
nomic and political conditions of the country, Poland was not in a
position to advocate views on such an important issue as Hungary
that were opposed to those of the Soviet Union. He appealed to
journalists to moderate their views. There were certain topics, such
as the Hungarian issue, on which it was not possible to write or
speak with complete freedom.53 All of this made little impact.
Therefore the PUWP leadership restored full censorship, prohibit-
ed public speeches by Polish journalists who had returned from
Budapest, and dismissed radio and press correspondents who did
not accept the new rules.

The execution of Imre Nagy and his associates in June 1958
was completely unexpected and came as a major shock to the
Polish Party and government leadership. Gomutka became furious
on receiving the news. He thought that Kadar had deceived him. He
considered the execution to have been a vile murder.5 According
to popular belief Gomutka had received a personal promise from
Kadar that even if a trial were held, no death sentences would be
imposed. Gomutka had been in Budapest on an official visit in May
1958, after having postponed that visit for a year and a half. It is
believed that Gomutka received the promise personally from Kadar
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during Em. visit. The PUWP did not agree with the Imre Nagy trial _
and especially not with the manner in which it was conducted. They -#8 Notes

disapproved of it behind the scenes, but at the same time they did 2
not want to argue with the other countries of the Soviet camp over '8
this matter. The summer of 1958 was quite distinct from the fall of .38
1956. The June 28, 1958, speech of Gomulka in Gdansk confirmed H
this public position. In the name of “political pragmatism” he fully
accepted the official Hungarian position on the Imre Nagy trial. ;

Subsequently the PUWP leadership believed that with the -
Gdansk speech the Imre Nagy issue, and in general the issue of the
evaluation of the Hungarian Revolution, was closed from their ‘3
point of view. They did not bring it up later, and expected that 3
Polish public opinion would forget the whole matter. However, in
October 1981 they revived the Hungarian events of 25 years ago -8
for the purpose of intimidating the Solidarity movement and Polish .S -

society with the image of the bloody suppression of the Hungarian :
Revolution. But that is another story.

|, This watchword emphasized also the point that Hungary should not
copy the example of other countries, but each nation must chart its
own way.
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